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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Bhamini Rear Estate Deveropers ptivate Limited

Repor on the Audit of the Ind AS Financiar Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters statecl i, section 13a(5) of the Act withrespect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that glve a true and fair. view of theFrnancial position, financial performance lncome, cash florvs and changes inequity of the Companl, in accordance ies generally, accepted in India , includingthe Indian Accounting Standards

we have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bhamini Real Estate Developers privateLrmited ("th" company'), which .omprir. the Balance sheet as at N{arch 31, 2o25,the statement of profitand Loss' including the statement od other co*fr"rr.nsive Income, the cash Flow Statement and thestatement of changes in Equity for the year then ;d.r,;;a ,"r..,'r"',he financial statements, incrud 
^g ^

summaly of significant accourtirg policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations grven to us, theaforesaid Ind AS financial statements glve the rnformation ,.q.rii"a by the companies Act, 201,3 (,,theAct') in the manner so required and gr.'. 

^ 
true and fair view in conforn,iry with th. u..o.rrtrng p.nciplesgenerally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at Nlarch 31, 2o25,its profi.t inctudingother comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

we conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the standards on Auditing(SAs)' as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. our responsibilities under those standards are furtherdescribed in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financiar Statements section of ourreport' we are independent of the company in accordance with the 'code of Ethics, issued by the Instituteof chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirerne,ts that are relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilledour other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of Ethics. lfe believethat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprir,. to provide a basis for our auditoprnion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditorrs Report Thereon
The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other informatio'. The otherinformation comprises the informatron included rn the Annual report, but does not include the Ind ASfinancial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and rve do notexpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibiliry is to read the otherinformation and' in dorng so, consider whether the other informatio, is mater{any inconsistent with thefinancial statements or our knorvledge obtained in the audit or othenvise appears to be materially rnisstated.
If' based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a rnaterial misstatement of this otherinformation, w'e are required to ieport that fact.we have nothrng to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial statements

Companies (Indian Accounting S
sectloll 133 of the Act read rvith [the

AS amended]. Tiris responsibility also rncludes
*
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maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the.Act for safeguardingof the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frarrds and other irregularities; selection andapplication of appropriate accounting policies; making judgrients and cstimates that are reasonable andprudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance oi adequate internal financial controls, that wereoperating effectively for ensuring the accuracv and completeness or,rr. accounting records, relevant to thepreparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are freefrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company,s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlrs related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless maflagement either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditot's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are ftee fiom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an aud^itor,s report that
includes oul opinion' Reasonable assurance is a hrgh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that anaudit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matenalmisstatement when it exists. N{isstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind aS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance rvith SAs, we exercise professional judgrnent and. maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or effor, design and perform aud.it procedures responsive to rhose risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provicle a basis io, o.r, opinion. The risk of not detecting
a matefl^l misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overr1de of iniernal
control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(, of the Act, we ire also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intern al financial controls system i,
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matertal uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast sigruficant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a tn tetlal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor,s report
to the related disclosures rn the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to -odifyour opin'ion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtarned up to the date of our auditor,s
report' However, future events or conditions may cause the Compan)' to cease to continue as a going
conceln.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements reprcsent the undedying transactions ancl
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, t6e planned scope
and uming of the audit and significant audit findings, including an), significant deficiencies in i'ternal
control that we identift during our audit.

H ARTE RE D

iCOUNTANTS

,/\

r.O L

We also provide those charged with
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tement that we have complied with relevant



ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and othermatters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
-o., 

o* independence, and where applicable, relatedsafeguards.

Repott on Other Legal ancl Regulatory Requirements
1,. As required by 1\ Companies (Auditor,s Report),,Ord er, 2O2O (..the-Order,), issued by the CentralGovernment of India ii tt'-t of sub-se..ior, (11) of ,..tioi 143 of the Act, we give in the"Annexure A" a statement on the matters rpl""n.a tnparagraphs 3 and,4of the order.2. As required by Sectio n 1a3e) of the Act, we report that:

(^) v7e have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ourknowledge and belief were necessaly for the pu{poses of our audit;

@) I" our opinion' ProPer books of account as reqrrired by raw have been kept by the company so faras it appears from our examination of those books;

(t) The Balance sheet' the statement of Profit and Loss including the staternent of othercomprehensive Income, the cash Flow statement and Statement of changes in Equity dealt withby this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial

;ffi::::,t H.1Tj.,.;;;;;;'lr,n. 
Act, read;d'L'ffi::iiJai#^IiilJ};;X;J,:H:,::iffi1:

G) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on N{arch 31,, z,z.takenon record by the Board of Directors, none oith. directors is disqualified as on N,Iarch 31,,2025from being appointed as a director in terms of Sectio n 1,64 e) ofthe Act;

O srith respect.'o 
'lt adequacy of the internal financial controls over Frnanciar reporting of thecompany with referttt ^to 

'i"" Ind AS financial statements a'd the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls, refer to our separate Report in ..AnnexLlre 
B,, to this report;

G) 
[1.dffi'::;:,lir.#n ]?];;t.*t,, 

Schedure \/ or trre Act are not appricabre to the company

th) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor,s Report in accordance withRule 11 of the- companies (Aud"it and Audiffides, 2014, as anrended i, our opinion and to thebest of our informrtior, ,rd' ,..ording to the expranations glven to us:

i' 
ffir!|| 

Pany does not have any pending Iitigations rvhich would impact its financial

The company did n9t,!ve anylong-term contracts including derivarive conrracts for whichthere were any material foreseeable iosses;

11.

There were no amounts rvhich rvere required to be tra,sferred to the Investor Educationand Protection Fund by the Cornpany.

1\'

E The N{anagernent has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds(which are material either individually or rn the te) have been advanced or loanedor invested (either from
aggrega

borrowed funds or share premrum or any other sources or kindof funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entiry("Intermediaries,), with the understandrng whether recorded in u/flung or otherwise, thatthe Intermediary shall, whe ther, directly or indirectly lend or tnvest in other persons orentities idenufied in any manner
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#:f#i::;'' "t Provide ^rlv g,,wantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate
b) The N'Ianagement.has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds(which are material either indiviiualy'o. --r[1";.."j#;il^il 0.., received by thecompany from any person or entity,'i".l"d-; rorHgrr".rr;.y 1.rr"aing parties,), withthe understanding, whether r..ord# 3 *rG or otherwi.L,'that the company shall,whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest i, itt., persons o.-.rrtiti., id.rrtifi.jin anymanfler whatsoever by or on behatf of the f""airrg !^rry 1..Utairrrr,. Beneficiaries,) orprovide any gv tarttee, security or the like on behalf Jr trr. 'ui,i*rr" 

Beneficiaries;

t) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate inthe circumstances, 
lothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

;r11,T:iX?H'#H]i,,tH"flff:,G) orRure 11(e), as p,o,,ia.a under 1,; ^,a 
p;

The company has not paid or declared any divid.end during the yeat, accordingly theprovision of section L23 of the Act are not applicable to the company.

The comp^ny has used a third p^rry operated accounting soft'urare for maintaining itsbooks of account, based or, .*r-irrrti"" of service orgriirution controls report (socreport)' we noted that the audit trail feature of the said so"fnvare was enabled and operatedthroughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, duringthe course of our audit, based on the exarnination of such repolt, we did not come acrossany instance of audit trail feature being tampered wiit. Additionally, based onexamination of soc report, the audit 11 irir.rf..t or such software has been recordedand preserved in full compliance with the requirenrents of section lzg(5) of thecompanies Acq 201,3, in resiect 
:1,1. l-r".ri;ear ended N{arch 31,2o25.Furrher, inrespect of the financial years ended March 31,2oiq,in the absence 

";ib;;;"^?"?rn"period from Aptit 7, 2023 to December 31,, 2023, we are unable to assess whether theaudit trail has been preserved as per the statutory requrrements for record retention.

v

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co

* *
oEL

N{em No. 52 1

ICAI Firm R.gn. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date: 23.04.2025
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..Annexure An to the AuditoCs Report of even date to the membets of Bhamini Real Estate

Developers Private Limited, on the Ind AS financial statements fot the year ended on March 31,

2025.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the true and fair view

of the Ind AS Frnancial starements of the company and considenng the information and explanations glven

to us and books of accounts and other records provided to us during the normal course of audit, we hereby

feport that: -

l) In respect of Company's Properry, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets, accordrng to

information, explanations and rePresentations given to us

a) Since the Comp2n1, d6., not have anv Propertl', Plant and Equipment, hence reportrng under clause

3 (i) (a) (A) of the order is not applicable to the company'

b) Srnce the Company does not have anv intangible assets, hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (a) @) "f
the order is not applicable to the comPan\I

c) Srnce there is no immovable properry m the company, hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (c) of the

order is not applicable to the comPany.

d) Since the Company does not have any Properry, Plant and Equipment (including rights of Use

Assets) or both, hence reporting under clause 3 (r) (d) of the order is not applicable to the Companl''

e) According to information & explanations and representations given to us bv the management, no

proceed-gr has been rnitiated o, ur. pendrng against the company for holding anv benami ProPerty

,r.rde, Ben-amr Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder'

(.) In our opinion and accordtng to the information & explanatlon g1\'en [o Lls, the inventon'has been

physical verirred by the *^rrug.*enr at reasonable inten'al dunng the vear. In our opinion, the

proc.d,rres of phytsical verificauon of Inventories follorved bv management are reasonable and

ud.q,rur. in relauon to the size of the companl' and narure of its business. No discrepancies of l0o/o

or more in aggregate for each class of inventory has been noticed

(b) Accord.ing to the information & explanation glven to us, the Companv has not been sanctioned

working capital lirnits in excess of { 5 crore, in aggregate, at anv points of time during the ys21,

from banki or financial mstiruuons on the basis of securiw of current assets and hence rePorting

under clause 3(ti)O) of the Order is not apphcable'

ur)
Companl' has made the investments,

rantee, unsecured to companies, firms

(in Lakh$

[)

(u) Accord.ing to the information & explanation glven to us, the

provided lorrrr, advances rn the nature of loans, and stood gua

and limited liabilitv Partnerships or other parties as follorvs:

LoansParticular
4,460.00dided thetedamounte t tllmg yearpro\rgranAggrega
4,460.00- Holding/Subsidiaries /Fellow Subsidiaries

- Joint Venrures

- Associates

- Others

4,459.99

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet

- Holding/Subsidraries /Fellow Subsidiaries
CASCS

date in respect o[ above

!c Hnnrr n I
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- Joint Ventures

- Associates

- Others

&) In our opinion, the terms and cond"itions of guarantees provided, investment made and loans granted,

dulng the year are, prima facie, not preiudicial to the Company's interest.

(.) In respect of loans granted by the Company, where schedule of repayment of pnncipal and payments

ur. ,tip.rlated, the ,-.puy-.rri of pnncipal and interest are in line with supulated terms & conditions.

However, ir, ,especioi lou.r, which 
^i, 

,rpuy^ble on demand, the same have been received during

the year upon dimand of the company and in respect of loan outstanding at the vear end, we are

informed that the comPanv has not demanded the same'

(d) In respect of loans granted bt' the Companr,, there is no overdue amount remairung outstandrng as

at the balance sheet date.

(E Accordrng to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures, the

Compurrv has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans during the vear which have

fallen due for r"pulio.rrt and irarre been renewed or extended or settled b1' fresh loans granted to the

same Parties.
(0 A, disclosed ur the Note no.9 to the Frnancial statements, the compan)'I has granted loans or advances

rn the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of

repayment to companies o, urryroiher parri.es. of these following are the details of the aggregate

amount of loans or advances in th. nature of loans granted to promoters or related parties as defined

in clause f6) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
(in Lakhs)

,9

lr)

"i)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not

granted 
^rry 

lo^rm to d.ire.toi/ to a company in whilh director is interested to whrch provisions as

defined in the section 1g5 of the Compu*.t Act, 2013 appl)' and hence nor conunented upon. In

our opinion and according to the inforLaUon and explanaUon glvel to us, provisions of 186 of the

Companies Act, ZO13 Lnr".rp.., of guarantees and setunties grven have been complied with bi' the

company.

According to the information & explanation given to us, Compani'has not accepted any deposit or

amounts which are deemed to be d.porit.. Ff...., reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not

applicable,

Maintenance o[ cost records has not been specified bv the Central Government under sub-section

(1) of section 14g of the Companies Act,20i'3 for the business activities carried out bv the Companv'

H.rr.., reporting under clause (vi) of the order is not applicable to the companv'

In respect oF staruton' dues,

A..ordrrrg to the records of the compan)', the companv is generallt' regular rn depositrng undisputed

statutory 
-d,r., 

includrng provident f,,.rrd, emplol'ees' state insurance, rncome-tax, sales-tax, service

a/CHirRI

Iaccouru
\*\

Related PartiesPromotersParucular

4,460.00
- Repayable on demand (A)

Agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment

Aggregate amount of loans f advances in nature of loans

@)
,+,460.00

Total (A+B)

1000,'o
Percentage of loans f advances in nature of loans to

Ioans

the total

"ii)
a)

'l'i

L}P'



"in)

tax, duty of customs, duw of excise, value added tax, cess and anv other statutory dues applicable to

it.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts pa\rable in

respect oI irr.o*a tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs d,rry*, excise duq', v'1t'e added tax

and cess were outstanding, as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than slx months from the date

they became PaYable'

b) According to the records and the information and the explanation given to us, the company does

not have anv disputed dues as on March 31,2)25in respect of goods and sen'ice tax, provident fund,

employee's state insurance, income tax, sales tax, serviie tax, duq' of customs, dutl' of excise, value

added tax, cess and any other statutory dues'

According to the information & explanation glven to us, there were no transactions relating to

prerriouslf unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in

ih. tu* assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)

a) Accord"ing to the information & explanation giyen to us, the Company has not defaulted in the

repaymeri of loans or in the Payment of interest thereon to any lender'

b) According to the information & explanation glven ro us, the Company has not been declared willful

default.rly any bank or financial rnstirution or go\rernment authorin'.

c) According to the information & explanation glven to us, the Company has not taken any term loan

du'ng the year and there are no or'rtrturrdr.r[ t..* loans at the beginrung of the year and hence'

,.porlirrg under clause 3(x)(c) of the Order is not applicable'

d) Accord-ing to the information & explanation given ro us, on an overall examination of the financial

statements of the Company, funds ,uis.d on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during

the year for long-term Purposes by the Company'

e) Accord.ing ro the information & explanation g1Yen to us, companv has not taken any funds from

any entity or person on account of t, to meeithe obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint

\rentufes.

rx)

x)

0 According to the rnformation & explanation given to us, Companv has not raised any loans on pledge

of securities held by its subsidiarier, loirr, ventures or associatei and hence rePorting on clause 3(o) (0

of the Order is not aPPlicable

a) According to the information & explanation 91en to us, the companY has not ratsed money bv way

of initjal public offer or further public offer (iicludrng debt instruments). Accordingll" the provision

of clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable'

b) Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or convertible

debenrures. Accordingly, the piovision of clause 3(,.Xb) of the order is not applicable'

*i)
(u) To the best of our knowledge and According to the information & explanation given to us' no

fraud by the Company or rlu fraud on the -o.r,putu has been noticed or rePorted during the

y.ur. Accord.ingly, the'prorrision of clause 3(xi) (u) & (b) "f the order is not applicable'

ffi
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(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section '1,43 of the companies Act, 2013 has

been filed by cost auditors/secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule

13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Government'

1b) Accord"ing to the information & explanation glven to us, no whisde blower complaints has

been received during the year by company.

xu) In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company is not a

Nidhi companv. Hence the provision of clause 3(*u) (a) to (c) of the order is not applicable to the

comPany.

*") According to the information & explanations glven to us, all transactions deFrned under Sectron 188

of the Aciare in compliance with Section 188 and details of these transactions are properly disclosed

in the Frnancial Statements. Further, Section 117 of the Act is not applicable to the Companv.

xlv) According to the information & explanatrons glven to us, Compant'does not have an internal audit

sysrem uria ir not required to have an internal audit svstern under provisions of Section 138 of the

Act. Accord.ingly reporting under clause 3 (*9 (a) and 0) "f the Order is not applicable to the

company.

xv) In our opiruon the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or

persons connected with its dir..,or. as referred under provisions of section 192 of the Companies

Act,2013.

x-,i)

xvu)

a) In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company ts

not required to be registered under secrion 45-IA of the Resen'es Bank of India Act, 1934.

Accor&ngly, the provrsion of clause 3(xvi) (a) of the order is not apphcable to the comPany'

b) The Company is nor engaged in any Non-Banking Financials or Housing Finance activities.

Accord.ingty, if,. r.q.rire-int to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) is not applicable to the Company'

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Companl as defined in regulations made bt'Reserve

Bank of Ind.ia. Accordinglr', the requirement to report in clause 3(xvi)(c) is not applicable to

the ComPanY,

d) The Group has one Core Investment Company as part of the Group. Hence, the

require*.rrt to report on clause 3(xvr)(d) of the order is not the applicable to the company'

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial vear and has incurred cash losses of

Rs.2.88 Lakhs during the rmmediately preceding financial vear'

There has been no resignation of the statutory aud.itors of the Companv duflng the vear. Accordingly,

the requuement to rePort on clause 3(rvrii) is applicable to the Companv'

On the basis of the Frnancial ratios d.isclosed in Note 24 of the Frnancial statement, ageing and

expected dates of rcahzatton of financial assets and pavment of financial liabilities, other information

u..o-purruirrg the financial statements and or.ri ktorrledge o[ the Board of Directors and

Managem.rr,-ptrr6 and based on our examination o[ the evidence suPPortmg the assumptions,

.rotl.,.irrg l"ras come to our attention, whicl-r causes us to believe that anY material uncertainrv exists as

on the date of the audrt reporr rndrcaung that Compani'is not capable of meeturg its liabrhues exrsung

at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance

sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the furure viability of the Company'

We further stare that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit rePort and we

*"i1i)

xlx)

(rou
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xx)

neither give any guaranree nor any asswance that all liabrhties falting due within a period of one year

from the balance sheet date, will ger discharged by the Company as and when thev fall due.

Accordrng to the information & explanations given to us, companv is not required to make anv

expend"iture under corporate social responsibiliq' under provision of section 135 of the Act.

Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xx) (u) & (b) "f the order is not applicable to the comPany.

xxi) This clause of the order is applicable ro consolidated financial statements. The audit rePort under

reference is on the standalo.re fi.rurrcial statements of the compant'. Consequentl)', clause (xxi) of
paragraph of the order is not applicable to the comPany'

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered PxCo

Kunal *
Partner EL

No. 521

ICAI Frm R.gt. No: 010630N/N500036

Place: Gurugram
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Report on the rnternal Financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of theCompanies Act, 2013 (rrthe Act'r)

In coniunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the company as of and for the year

n1iHTr'5:";ffi.:;1,ffi:Hfii,jl: -""'a nnanciar contrors o,., ri,,,.iur,.po,ting orBhamini

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors. of. the comp any,, 
^re 

responsible for establishing and maintaininginternal financial controls based on the internal .orrt ol or.., firiurrcial reporting criteria established by thecompany considering the essential componen,, oi internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Auditof Internal Financial controls 
""t: fi"lncial Reporting.issuea uy tr,. rnstitute of chartered Accountants ofIndia ("ICAI)' These responsibilities include the qeslgn, *pi.rn.rrtation and maintenance of adequateinternal financnr controls ih't *.'. operating effectively for ensuring the ordedy and efficient conduct ofits business' including adherence to .o-p^nys policies, tt . ,ur.g.rrrling of its assets, the prevention anddetection of frauds and errors, th-e accuracy ,nd .o*pleteness or ,rr. accounting records, and the timelypreparation of reliable financial informatiorr, ,, r.q.rirei under the Companies Act,201,3.

Auditots, Responsibility

our responsibiJity is to express an opinion on the_.company's internal financial controls over financialreporting based on our audit' we conJucted our audit ir, ,..ordunce with the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial controls over Financial Reporriog (the "Guidance Note,) issued by ICAI and theStandards on Auditing, issued by ICAI urrd d..rr..a 
'to 

be prescribed under section 143(1,0) of theCompanies Act' 201'3, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by theInstitute of chartered Accountants oi trraa. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that wecomply with ethical requirements.and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabre assurance aboutwhether adequate internal financial controls or'., ?-urrcial reporting was established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectivery in ail, mateiar respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internalftna'.cnr controls system o-,.r-firrrrrcial report rrg ..ra their operatirg effectiveness. our audit of internalfinancial controls over financial reporting includJd obtaining rn ,.ra.r'rtanding of internal financial controlsover financial reporting, assessing trre rlst that a material i^reakness exists, and testing and evaluating thedesrgn and operating effecti"enei of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selecteddepend on the auditor's iudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of thefinancial statements, whetheidue to fraud orlrror.

we believe that the audit evidence we ha'e obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ouraudit opinion on the company's internal financial controls system orr.r'firru.rcial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Repotting

ttAnnexure - B, to the Auditors, Report

A company's internal financial control over financial rePortmg $ a process designed to provide reasonableassufance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of flnancial statements forexternal pulposes rn accordance with generally accep ted accourtiog principles. A company,s internalfinancial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to themamtenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions anddispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recordedas necessary to permit preparation of financial sta tements in accordance with generally accepted accountingptnciples , and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance withatthorb,ations of management and rlirsgl.r, of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assuranceregarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acqu1slt1on, use, or disposition of the company,sassets that could have a material effect on the I

*
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tements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial conttols over Financial Repoting
Because of the inherent limitations of intern al financial controls over financial reporting, including thepossibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due ro efforor fraud may occur and "ot be detect.i eto, p-i..-*ns of urrf'.rrulration of the internal financialcontrols over financial reporting to future periods X* ,rruy..t to th. .isk that the intern al frnancial controlover ftnancial reportrng may become-rnud"q.rrt. because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofcompliance with the poricies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion' the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systemover financial reporting and such internal financiai controls orr'., frrrri.lrr ,.porrirrg *.r. operatingeffectively as at N'{arch 37,2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establishedby the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note onAudit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

Opinion

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP

A

N{em No.521269

v

ICAI Firm R.grr. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date: 23.04.2025
uDrN: zlsriT| ? D /t4i 99 A 35sS
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I. ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Properry, Plant and Equipment
(b) F'inancial a5sets

(r) Other Financial Assers

(c )Non-curqU ta.x assets (lrlet)
Current assd5
(a) Inventories

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Caih and cash equivalents

(ii) Oiher bank balances

(iii) toans
(c) Other cuffent Assets

I T. EQTIITY AND LTABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) F)quiry Share Capital

S) Other Equiry.

Bhamini Real Estate Developers private Limited
cIN- U45201HR2006PT CtO67 g0

2nd Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF city, phase IIr, Gurugram, Haryana - r2z o0z
Balance Sheet as at3tMatch2025

Particulars Note No. As at
37March2025

0.10

719.18

3.49

3.52

4,573.54

-3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at

37March2024

0.10

0.05

1,896.81

r.05

6.42

1.00

1,90L94

0.66

0.04

0.75

0.14

Total Assets
____12e2.83_ lw

--

11

12

1.00

4,492.07

LIABILITIES
Curreut liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilues

(i) Trade palzbies 
13

-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Total Outstandiog dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(if Other financial [abiliues 
14

(b) Other currenr liabifiues 
15

(c) Curent tax liabilites (net) 
16

Iotal Equity arrd Liabilities

0.94

0.05

0.75

0.17

804.8s

___Jzee.83_

-

Summan' of matenal accounting policies

T'he accompanying notes fc'rrms an integral part of tl.rese financial sarernenrs

Based oo our audit report o[eren date aftached.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co. LLP

Chartered ts

0cAr Regn

No.: 521269

Place: Gurugram
Date:23.04.25

1-2

For and on behalf <lf board of directors
Bhamini Real Estate Developers private Limited

d.^
j,

Manpreet Singh
Director

DIN :08698797

Jeetendra Kumar Patel
Director

DIN :08698827

l-.

ARIE R ED
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I Bhamini Real Estare Developers private Limited
cI N-U4s20 1H R2006 PT C7067 90

2nd Flo<rr, DLF Gatervay Tor.ver, R Block, DLF city, phase III, Gurugr amrHaryana _ 122 002
Statement of profit and Loss for the year ended 3rMarch 2025

I.INCOME
Rcvenrre from ( )perations

()ther Incomc

Total Incoriie
t

-:"
lI. Expenses

cost of land, plots, de'elopmcrrt rights. c.nstrucred properties and others
Finance costs

Oth.er expenses

Total Expenses

IIL Profit/(Loss) before tax(I-II)

IV. Tax expense
('.Lrrrcnt [car
[)cferred ta-x

V. Profit for the year (III-IV)

VI. Other comprehensive income
.\ i)ltems that u.ill nor be reclassified to pr<.rfit ancl loss

ii)lncome tax relatiltg t(, itcurs tlrat w'ill not be rcclassifiecl ro pr6tir.r [6ss
B i) ltems that will bc reclassified to profit or loss

ii)lnc.mc tax relati.s to itelns tlrar will bc reclassified t. pr.tit,r l.ss
Total comprehensive incorne/(loss) for the year (V_VI)

vII. (Loss)/Earnings per equitv share (face varue of Rs 10 per share)
tsasic (Rs)

Diluted (Rs)

Ratio Analysis

Summarv of materiurl irccotrnrirrs policics

1'1,*.1g6rllxparll ull{ ntltcs titrlns an irttcural part ()f thcsc t'i.nancial statements

Ba.-cd rln our audit rc[-r()rt of elcl darc rmrchccl

l.or irrrd rln behalf oI
ARG & Co. LLP
(.-hartcred .\ccountzrnrs

fl(..\ I o:010630\i\51XJ036)

in Lakhs

1,507.79

126.+2 0.57
4,634.21 0.57

17

18

t9

20

21

1.177 .62

0.83

2.98
0.83

2.62

22

23

21

t-2

1,191.43

3,452.79

862.55

2,590.23 (2.88)

2,590.23 (2.88)

3. l2
3.12

(0.(D3)
(0.0{t3;

I.or;tud orl bchalIof boirrd r,ridircctors
Bhamini Real Estate Developers privafe Limited

.:
l

Manpreet Singh
I )irector

I)l\ : (,,18(198797

Jeetendra Kumar Patel
[)irector

I)l\ : 1j8698827
\lembership \o.: 52 I 2(i9

Place: Gurugram
Date:23.04.25

h

3.4s

?
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Bhamini Real Estate Developers Private Limited
cIN-U45201HR2006mC 106790

2nd Floor, DLF Gatewav Tow-er, R Block, DLF citr-, phase III, Gurugram, Fraryan a - 122 002
Statement of changes in equin- for the vear ended 3l March 202s

A share
rn

Convenible Debentures ln

C Other equitv (Amount in Lakhs)

#'fhe (-ompanv had issued tJ.2tl,80,f)fi1 ().0loo unsecurcd Compulsonlv Convertrble Debenrures (CCDs) o[ iace ralue t l0 each agyegating to {
8,288 lakhs to its esistrng shareholders on rights issuc basis. Each CCDs is compulsorill conrcrtible, at rhe option ot CCD Holders, inro one
number oi fiqun Shares rn one or more tranches within a penod of ten vears trom the tlate of ellotment of the CCDs but not later than the explr]-
of tcn t ears.

'rhc accompanving notes iorms an rntegral part oi rhes^e financral statemcnrs

+Refer notc No. I ?

[;or lnd on belral[,rI
ARG & Co.

For and on bchrli r,I boirrd of drrcctors

Bhamini Real Estate Developers Private Limited
(_

ll
&Co

R.gn i\

HARIE R E D
{

0UNTAI{TS It
*

_1 ./ Manpreet Singh
[)trcctor

l)l\ : ttrt(r9i1797

Jeetendra Kumar Patel

[)rrcctor
DI\ :tllt69ltil27

,lrtn

\lcrn lup \o,: )2126()

Place: Gumgram
Date: 23.0.{.25

o

\-.

Flquin share capital 1.{l( r Ioil

lirlui 11* sha.re capi tal 1.0() 1.00

(-ompulsoril)' Convertrblc Debenrures 8,288 8,288

Compulsonlv C<-,nvertible Debenrures 8,288 8,289

Balance at the beginning of the reporting vear 1 Lpfl2023 8,288.00 (6,383.28) 1,904.72
Tc-,ta] loss oi the (2 88) (2.88)
Balance at3lMarch2024 8,288.00 (6,386.16) 1,901.94
Balance at the of the 1 2A21 8,288.00 (6,386.16) 1,901.94
Total incomc oi thc r,ear 2,590.23 2,590.23
Balance at 31 March 2025 8,289.00 (3,795.93) 4,492.07

ELB},'

\

<:
O"

Perticulars Bahnce at I April
mzA

Changr irn Eq,rty
Sbare Capial during

the lear

Balance at 3t
March 2025

Particulars I Balance at 1April
n23

Cbnge i" Eq"ty
Share Capitd duriog

thc yeet

Balancc at3lst
\tlarehm2,/.

Particulars Bahre.t I Aprit
mu

Cfaoges in
compulsorily
corrvertblc

debentures during

Bdanse rt 31

IlIerrft20es

&€

Particutrrrs Balence at I April
zfrX

6e

Charges in
compdsorilg'
convertibk

debentures durforg

B&nce rt3lst
*lztch2s2tl

@mlloo€rrtof
coryuteorily'
coorertible

Total cquiwParticrilzrs
Capital nes€r're 

I

Reained
eenirys



Bhamini Real Estate Developers private Limited
cIN-U45201HR2006PT C106?90

2nd Floor, DLF Gatewav Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram, Ffary ana - lZ2 002
Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 3lMarchZ0ZS

A)CASH FLOW FROM OPERATTNG ACTTVTTIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adiustment for:
[)eprecratron

Intcrest Income

Interest E,xpenses

Operating (Loss) before working capital changes

Adiustment for:
Movement in Working capital:
Increase/ (f)ecrease) in (-urrent and non-current financial liabilirics
(lncreasc) / I )ccrease in invcnron'
rlncrease)/l)ccrease i. (-urrent and non-current financial assets

,-,lash flow (used in) from operating activities post working capital changes
Income'['ax Refund f\et of taxes)

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A)

B)CASH FLOW FROM TTWESTTNG ACTTVTTTES
Invesrment in Fixed deposits
Loan givcn

Interest Income on I;Lxed dep<.rsits

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B)

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTTVITIES
liinancc cost paid (including 1'DS)

Net cash flor*'from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
(.ash and cash equivalcnts at thc beginning oithe vear (retc'r n<ltc -)
(,ash and cash ecluivalcnts at thc cnd oithe i'ear (reter note ")

3.-152.78

(126.12)

0.83

(2.88)

(0.5')

0.83

3,32-.19 e.62)

0.32

1,117 .62

(0.46)

4,505.13 (3.08)

(57.6,1)

4,447.49 (3.08)

2.90

(4,460.00)

12.89

3.38

0.57

(4,444.21) 3.95

(0.83) (0.83)

(0.83) (0.83)

2.44 0.03

2.44 0.03

105

3.-+9

1.02

105

(-'rmman'of material accounting p<llicies S.efer note no.1- 2)

\-/
The accompanving notc-s forms an integral part of rhese financial statcmerits

Based on oLlr audit rcport t-ri even date attached

I:.rr rtnd on bcltalioI
ARG & Co. Ll.P
(-harrcrcd.

(I(. \ I

\lcnrb hrp \o.: ;21269

Place: Gurugram
Dare: 23.04.25

ljor and orr bch:r]f of board of dircctors
Bhamini Real Estate Developers Private Limited

L
Manpreet Singh
[)irccror
l)l\ : 08(198-9-

Kumar Patel
[)irector
[)l\ :0869882-

HARTERE D

\

Particulars

(Amorlnt in Lakhs)

For the year ended 3l For the year ended 31
March 2025 Mrarch?f/Z.

co



Bhamini Real Estate Developers Private Limited
crN-u45201HR2006PTC106790

Regd olfice;2nd Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloct<, DLF city, phase III, Gurugram, H aryrna - 122002
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended i1 March 2025

1. Corporateinformation
Bhamini Real Estate Developers Private Limited ('the Companr.') is engaged primarily in the business of real estate
development. The operations of the Companr span all aspects of real estate development, ftom the identification
and acquisition of,land, to planning, execution, construction and marketing of proieits. The Company is a privare
limited companl domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Compani.s A.t 

"ppti.rUt. 
io

India. The registered office is 2nd Floor, DLF Gateqat Tower, R Bloc[ DLF Ci*, Phase iII, Gurugarn, Harl'ana
- 122 002

The financial statements for the \-eat ended 31 NIarch 2025 were authorised and approved by the Board of
Direcrors on for issue on 23 Aprn 2025.

2. Material accourxting policies

2.1 Basis of ptepatation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards ftereinafter referred b as the 'Ind AS) as notified b). Iltinisq' of Corporate Affairs (.Ir{CA)
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amerided ftom time to time and presentadon requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies .\ct, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to tle standalone financial statements.

The sandalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles genenlly accepted in India. Further, the standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical
cost basis except fot certaio financial assets, Frnancial liabilities, detivative furancial instruments and share bascd
pa\-menB which are measured at fait values as explained in relevant accounting policies. The changes in accoundng
policies are explained in note 2 (o).

The standalone frrancial statements ate presented in Rupees and all r'alues ate rounded to the nearest [akh, except
rvhen otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

a) Cutrent and non-current classification

The ComPan)'presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classif,rcation. An
asset is treated as cuffent when it is:

months after the reporting period.

lll other assets are classified as non-currenr.

A liabilin'is current rvhen:

&C
f'he (-ompanr classifies all other liabilities

\9
-cLrfrcl-t

C HARTER E D

ACCOUNIAN

{\
Dcterred tax assets and liabiliries are clas as non- assets and liabilities

reportins period.



Bhamini Real Estate Developers private Limited
CIN-U45201HR2006PTC106790

Regd office: 2nd Floot, DLF Gateway Tower, R Btoclq DLF city, phase III, Gurugram, H rryana, - 122002
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements fot the year ended 31 March 2025

The operating clcle is the time between the acquisidon of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

b) Property, plant and equipment

Recugritior a initial mea treme,?l

Propertl', plant and equipment at their initial rccognition are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind
AS, the Companl had elected to measure all of its propeny, plant and equipment at the previous G.L{P cam.rng
value (deemed cost). The cost compfises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitallzation criteria are met and
ditecdy attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condidon for the intended use. Anv trade discount and
tebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the assit's carrying amount
or recognised es a separate asset, as appropdate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits aisociated
with the item will florv to the Company. \\hen significant parts ofplant and equipment are requited to be replaced
at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific usefirl Lives. Likewise, when a major
iospection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repait and maintenance costs are rccognised in statement of pro6t
and loss as incurred. The Companr. identiFres and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately,
if the component / part have a cost which is signi[rcant to the total cost of the asset and has useful lifi that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Subnqae meaunmenr (depftLiatiln and yreful liret)
ProPerq', plant and equipment are subsequendy measuted at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated rmpaitment losses, if anr. Depreciation on propert]', plant and equipment is provided on a straight-
line basis over the estimated usefi.rl lives of the assets as follorvs:

Asset category* Estimated useful
life

(in years)

Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Lct,2Al3
(in years)

Buildings
Plant and machinen,
Computers and data processing units

- Sen-ers and nefworks
- Desktops, laptops and other der.ices

Furniture and fixrures
Office equipment
Vehicles

2A-60

10-15

6
aJ

5-10
5

8- 10

60

15

6

3

10

5

8-10

The Companr', based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
cetain items of building, furniture and fixtures and planr and equipment o\.er estimated use6:l lives which are
different from the useful life prescribed h Schedule II to the Companies Act,2013. The management believes that
these estimated usefr.d lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which rhe assets are likely
to be used.

*In case ()f assets Pertaining to Golf and Club operations. the Companr- based on technical evaluadon and
management estimate considers the useful life of the assets as belorv:

Asset category Useful life
in vears)

Buildrngs
Planr and machinen'
Fr-rrninrre and trxtures

20

10

l

'I-he residual r-alues, useful lir-es and method
adjtrsted prospectir-eli', ii appropnare. NT"q

"-O LH

\* v
rer-ieu-cd at the end oi eacl'l tlnancial vear and



Bhamini Real Estate Developers Private Limited
cIN-U45201HR2006PTC106790

Regd olEce:2nd Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram, H aryana - 122002
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

De-rer:ognition

.\n item of propert!, Plant and equipment and any significant part inltially rccognised is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no futute economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising orde-
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the car4'ing amount of
the asset) is included in the statement ofproFrt and loss v'hen the asset is de-recognised.

c) Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-ptogress and intangible assets under development represents expendirure incurred in tespect of
capital projects /intangible assets under development and are carried at cost less accumulated impatment loss, if
an,v. Cost iocludes land, related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs, borrou/ing costs and other
direct expenditure

d) Inventories

Land and plots other than arca transferred to constructed properties at the cofirmencement of construction are
valued at lower of cost/as re-valued on conversion to stock and net realisable value. Cost includes land
(includrng development nghts and land under agreement to purchase) acquisition cost, borowing cosr if
inrentorisation criteda are met, estimated internal development costs and external der.elopment charges and
other directh. attributable cost.s.

Construction work-in-progtess of constructed properties other than Special Economic Zone (SEZ) projects
includes the cost of land (including development rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal
development costs, extemal development charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowing cost if
inventorisation criteria are met, development/ construction materials, and is rralued at lower of cost/estimated
cost and net realisable value.

a

a

a

a

a

In case of SEZ proiects, construction work-in-progress of constructed properties include internal development
costs, extemal development charges, construction costs, overheads, borros,'ing cost if inventorisation cdteria
are met, development/construction materials and is valued at lower of cost/esumated cost and net realisable
value.

Der.elopment rights represent amount pard under agreement to purchase land/development rights and
borrowing cost incurred bv the Company to acquire irrevocable and exclusive licenses/development rights in
the identified land and constructed properties, the acquisition o[ rvhich is either completed or is at an advanced
stage. These are valued at lou,,er of cost and net realisable r-alue.

Construction/development material is valued at lorver o[ cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises of
purchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Stocks tor maintenance iacilities (including stores and spares) are valued at cost or net realisable value,
u.hichever is lorver.

Cost is determined on rveighted average basis.

Net realisable ralue is the estimated selling price in the ordinan course of business less esdmated costs of
cornpletion and estimated costs necessafi. to make the sale,

e) Revenue from contract or services rvith customer and other streams of revenue

Revenuc trorn contracts s'ith cusromers is recogni trol oI the gclods or sen-ices are transferred to the
clrst()mer at an amount that ret'lecrs tl-re conside (-ompanr- e\pects to be enutled in exchange [or
rhose goods or sen-ices. The Companr- has

because it n'picalh- controls the goods and s

r it is the principal in its revenue arrarlgemenrs

a

S

* *
\h L

ng them t() the customers



v

Bhamini Real Estate Developers private Limited
CIN-U45201HR2006PTC106790

Regd oftice: 2nd Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF city, phase IrI, Gurugram, Hatyant- 122002
Notes to Standalone Financial Statemenm for the year ended 3lMirch 2025

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are pror.ided in nore 2.2e)(i)).

i. Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Revenue is measuted at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, taking into account contractualh'
defined terms ofparnent and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the govemment and is net of rebates
and discourlts. The Company' assesses its retenue affangements against speciEc criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all ofits revenue arrangemenm.

Revenue is tecognised in the Statement of ProFrt and Loss to the extent that it is probable that the economic
beneFrts will flow to the companr and the re'enue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliabty.

The Company has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 'Rer,.enue from contracts u,ith customers' to
tecognise revenue in the sandalone financial statements. The Company satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

a) The customet simultaneouslv receives and corlsunes the benehts provided by the Companv's performance as
the Company performs; or
b) The Companfs performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or
c) The Company's performance does not create an asset urith an altemative use to.the Company and the entity has
an enforceable right to pal.rneflt for petformance completed to date.

For performance obligations where any of the above conditions are not meq revenue is recognised at the point in
time at which the perfonnance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time or over a period of time based on vadous conditions as .included in
the contacts vzith customers.

Point of Time:

Retcrrue lm , ftal-ertate pmje$r
Revenue is recognised at the Point in Time w.t.t. sale of real estate units, including land, plots, aparrmenrs,
commercial units, der'-elopment rights including development agleements as and when the conuol passes on to the
customer

I n?ne dl clrt of obtairrirrg Lzntrad

The inctemental cost of obtaining a contract l.ith a customer is recognised as an asset if Company expecrs ro
recovet those costs subiect to other conditions of the srandard are met. These cosrs are charged to statement of
profit and loss in accordance witl the ftansfer of the properh to rhe customer.

Over a pedod of time:

Rer-enue is recognised over period of time for follorr-ing stream of revenues:

Rercnae Jbn Co-dcaelopnefi pnje..tr

Co-develoPment proiects where the Compan\- is acring as contracror, revenue is recognised in accordance wirh rhe
terms of the co-developer agreements. Under such contract assets created does not har.e an alternatir.e use for the
Companv and the Compan\- has an enforceable right e estimated prclject cost includes construcrion
cost, der-elopment and constructiorl marerial. inte
cost and o\-erheads oF such proiecr.

\n
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The estimates of the saleable area and costs are rer.iewed periodicallr- and effect of anv changes in such estimates is
recognized in the period such changes are determined. However, when the total project cost is estimated to exceed
total revenues from the proiect, the loss is recognized immediateh'.

Coutntction a ft-out pmjectr

Construction and fit-out ptojects rvhete the Companv is acdng as contractor, revenue is recognised in accor&nce
with the terms of the consuuction agreements. Under such contracts, assets created does not have an altemative
use and the Companv has an enforceable right to parnent. The estimated project cost includes construction cosr,
development and construction material and overheads of such project.

The Company uses cost based input method for measudng progress for performance obligation satisFred over
t-ime. Under this method, the Companl recognises revenue in proportion to the actual project cost incured as

against the total estimated ptoject cost. The management reviews and revises its measure of progress periodicall)
and are considered as change in estimates and accordingly', the effect of such changes in estimates is recognised
prospectively in the period in which such changes are determined. However, when the total proiect cost is
estimated to exceed total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediatelv.

As the outcome of t}e conracts cannot be measured reliably during the early stages of the project, contract
revenue is recognised onlr to the extent of costs incurred in the statement ofprofit and loss.

Reue n ue from g0 t' coarce operationt

Income from golf course operations, capitation, sponsorship etc. is fixed and recognised as per the management
agreement with the parties, as and when Companv satisfies performance obligation b,v delivering the promised
goods or senices as per contractual agreed terms.

Re n tal and,\Iain te nailce i ncorne

Revenue in respect of rent l and maintenance sen'ices is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the
terms of the respective contract as and when the Companv satisfies performance obligations bv delivering the
services as per contractual agteed terms.

Other opemting incone

Income ftom forfeiure of propenies and interest from and customers under agreements to sell banks is accounted
for on an accrual basis except in cases whete ultimate collection is considered doubtfirl.

i. Volume rebates and eady pavment rebates

The Companl provides move in rebates/ earll par.ment rebates/ dovm pal.rnent tebates to the customers. Rebates
ate offset against amounts pavable bl the customer and revenue to be recognised. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future rebares, the Companl' estimates the expected value of rebates that are likelr
to be incurred in future and recognises ahe revenue net of rebates and recognises the refund Jiabilitr for expected
future rebates.

ll Contract balances

Contrucl (tJJetJ

-\ contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or setr,.ices transferred to the customer. If the
Companr- pertorms bv transferring goods or sen-ices to a crrstomef beflore the customer pa|s consideration or
before pa\-menr is due. a contract asset is recognised for

t'
C HARTERED
ACCOUNTI.NTS
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.\ receivable represents the Companr's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. onh. the
passage of time is required before pavment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Frnancial
assets in section 2.2(u) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilitiet

A contract liabilitf is the obligation to transfer goods ot services to a customer for which the Companr has
received considetation (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays considemtion
before the Company tansfers goods or sen-ices to the customer, a contract liabilig- is recognised when *re
payment is made or the Pa)ment is due (whichever is eadier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue rvhen
the Company performs under the contract

0 Cost of revenue

Co$ of'real e$ate projectt

V
Cost of consttucted properties other than SEZ projects, includes cost of land (including cosr of development
rights/land under agreements to purchase), estimated intemal development costs, extemal development charges,
borrowing costs, overheads, construction costs and development/construction materials, rvhich is charged to the
statement of profit and loss based on the revenue recognized as explained in accounting poliq for revenue from
real estate projects above, in consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustrnent is
made on comptetion of the specific prolect.

Cort of SEZ prajeL'tr

Cost of constructed ptoperties includes estimated intemal development costs, extemal derelopment charges,
overheads, borrowing cost, construction costs and development/construttion materials, which is charged to the
statement of proFrt and loss based on the revenue recognized as explained in accounting policy' for revenue from
real estate SEZ projects above, in consonance vith the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adiusmrent is
made on completion of the speciFrc project.

Coil of'land and plott

Cost of land and plots includes land (including development rights), acquisition cost, estimated intemal
development costs and extemal development charges, which is charged to the statement of profit and loss based
on the petcentage of land/plotted area in respect of which revenue is recognised as explained in accounting poliry
for revenue ftom 'Sale of land and plots', in consonance with the concept of matching cost and revenue. Final
adjustrnent is made on completion of the specific project.

Co$ of deuelopnent rightt

Cost of development rights includes proportionate development rights cost, borrowing costs and other related
cost, vhich is charged to statement of profit and loss as esplained in accounting polict for retenue, in consonance
t-ith the concept of matching cost and rerenue.

g) Borrorving costs

Bottorting costs directll atttibutable to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarift.
takes a substantial period of time to get readv for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. -\[ other borrowing costs are chatged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrorv,ing cosrs
consist oi interest and other costs that the Compant 'lncurs 1n connection $rth the borro\.ing of tunds. Borros'ing
cost also includes eschanple drittrences ro rhe e\rerl n adjustment to rhe borro\\ing costs

h) Taxes
CHARTE RE D
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Tax expense recognized in statement of proFrt and loss compdses tle sum of defered tax and cunenr rax except
the ones recognized in other comprehensire income or directlr in equiq..

Curent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. Current tax is determined as the tax patable in respect of taxable income for the year and is
computed in accordance r,,,ith relerant tax regulations. Current income tar relating to items recognised outside
statement of profit and loss is recognized outside statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equin). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the unded).ing transaction erther in OCI ot
dirgcdf ir eSui$. I\[anagement periodicallv evaluates pos.itions taken in the rax renrmi with respect to sinrations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes pror-isions where appropriate.

In the situations where one or more units/undertaking in the Company are entitled to a tax holida). uoder the
Income-tax Act, 1961, no defered tax (asset or liabiliry) is recognized in respect of temporar)' differences which
reverse during the tax holiday period, ro the exrent the concemed entiq.,s gtoss total income is subiect to the
deduction during the tax holidav period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which teverse after the
tax holiday period is tecognized in the year io which the temporarv differences orighate. Horvevet, the Companv
restricts recognition of defetred tax assets ro the extent it is probable that sufFrcient futute taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Fot recognition of deferred taxes, the tempora4'
differences which originate lrrst are considered to reverse Fast.

Deferred tax

Defered tax is provided using the liabilitl method on tempora$' differences between the tax bases of assets and
Iiabi.lities and ther car4ing amounts for Enancial .eponing purpoies at rhe reporting dare.

Deferred tax liabilities are tecognised for all raxable temporan differences, excepc

. In respect of taxable temporarv differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in ioint ventures, whea the timing of the rer.ersal of the temporan differences can be conrolled and it is
probable that the temporan differences will not rer.erse in the foreseeable funrre.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporaq' differences, the carn forward ofunused tax credits
and anv unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable proFrt vill
be available against which the deductible temporan differences and the carfl' forward of unused tax credits and
unused ta-r losses can be uril.ised.
The carn'ing amount of deferred tax assets is revieved at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit rvill be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Untecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reponing date and are recogr sed to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits rvill allow the deferred tax asset to be recoyered.

Deferred tax assets rnd liabilities are measwed at the tax rates that ate expected to apph'in the r.ear w-hen the asset
is realised or the liabilin is settled, based on tax rates (and tax larvs) that have been enacted or subsrantiveh. enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax telating to items recogmsed outside statement of pro6t and loss is recognised outside sratement of
proFrt and loss (either in othet comprehensive income or in equin). Deflerred tas items are recognised in
correlation to the undedting transaction either in OCI or drrectlv in equiry.

Deferred ta-x assets and deferred tax LiabiLities are offset if a legallr enforceable right exists to ser otT cuffent tax
assets against cufrent tax liabilities and the det-effed taxes relate to the same tasable entin and the same raxarion
authorin'.

o
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Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax / value added taxes/Goods and sen ices ta-t
paid, except:
t Y.l the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or sen'ices is not recoverable ftom the taxation authoriq, in

which case, the tax paid is recognised as pat of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

> \!(hen receivables and par.ables are stated urith the amount of tax included
The net amount of tax recoverable ftom, or parable to, rhe taxation authodn- is included as part of receivables or
pavables in the balance sheet.

i) Impairmentofnon-financialassets

At each teporting date, the Company assesses whether thete is any indication based on intemal/extemal factors,
that an asset ma)' be impaired. If anv such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGL) fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largelr independent of those ftom orher assets or groups of assets. Vtren the
carn'ing amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is con;idered impaited and is
written down to its recoterable amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories, is
recognised in the statement of proFrt and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated funrre cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-rax
discount rate that teflects current matket assessments of the time value of monet and the risks specific to thi asset.
In detetmining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market ransactions are taken hto account. If no such
ttansactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated bt-
rzluation multiples, quoted share prices for publiclr traded companies or orher available fair r-alue indicators.

The Companl bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally covet a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated
and applied to project funrre cash flot's aftet the 6fth vear.

If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previouslv assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
tecovetable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at rhe recoverable amount. Impairment losses pre.riously
recognized are accordinglr revetsed in the statement ofprofit and [oss.

i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet compdse cash at banks and in hand and short term deposits with an
original maturin' of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash florvs, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestdcted cash and short-
term deposits, as deFrned above, net of outstanding bank or.erdrafts as the,r' are considered an integral part of the
Companv's cash managemenr.

k) Pmvisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are tecognized onh' s,'hen there is a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events,
and it is ptobable that an outflo\l of resources embodling economic benetits r',i11 be required to settle the
obligation and rvhen a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. Pror.isions
are discounted to their present values, rvhere the time value of moner is material, using a iurreni pre-tas mte that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specitic ro the liabilin-. \\hen discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

\\hen tl-re Companv expecrs some or all o[ a provisi (:, bursed, the rermbursement is recognised as a

separate asser. but onh' \\'hen rhe reirnbllrsement
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Onemus contracts

If the Companl has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised aod
measured as a provision. However, before a separate prorision for an onerous contract is established, the
companr recognises anl impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under rvhich the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot
avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obJ.igations under the contract exceed the economic beneEts
expected to be received undet it. The unavoi&ble costs under a contract reflect the leasr net cost of exiting from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fi.rlfilling it and anv compensation or penalties arising ftom failue to
tulfilit.

These estimates are reviewed at each repo.tirg date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilw is disclosed For:

Possible obligations which will be confimed onlv bJ' future events not whollv within the control of the
Company or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an ourflo,w of resources udll be
required to setde the obligation or a reliable estimate of the arnount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related
asset is disclosed.

l) Fiaancialinstruments

i financial instrument is ary contract that gives rise to a Enancial asset of one entiq and a financial liabiliq' or
equiq instrument of another enrin.

1) Financial Assets

Initial rerugniliot atd mearunnent

Financial assets are classilted, ar initial recogmtion, as subsequendv measured at amortised cost, fair r.alue through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of Frnancial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asser's contractual cash florv
characteristics and the Companr''s business model for managing them. \\ith the exception of uade receivables that
do not contain a significant Frnancing component or for rvhich the Companr has apphed the practical expedient,
the Compant initialh- measutes a Frnancial asset at im fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through pro6t or loss, net of transaction costs. Trade rcceivables that do not contain a significant Enancing
comPonent or for rvhich the Corirpanv has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under Ind -\S 115'Rerenue from contacts with customers'Refer to the accounting policies in seition
2.2 (i) 'Revenue from contracts u.ith customers'.

In order for a ltnancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or t'air value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash florvs thar are 'solell palments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is refetred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument ler-el.

The Companr-'s business model for manag'ing Frnancial assets refers to ho5. it manages its t-inancial assets in order
to generate cash florvs. The business model determines whether cash florvs s'ill tesult trrom collecting contracrual
cash florvs, seUing the t-rnancial assets, or both.

S u hs eq ue n I mett s' u rc m e tt I &Co
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' The asset is held 'ur,'ithin a business model whose obiective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows; and

' Contracrual terms of the asset grve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interesr (SPPD on the principal amount outstanding.

Aflter initral measurement, such financial assets are subsequentlv measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) merhod.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates - Investmenrs in
equit)'instruments of subsidiaries, joint venrures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance with
Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statemenrs'.

ll

lll.

lv

Investments in other equity instruments - Investments in equiw instruments which are held for tradrng
are classified as at f^ff value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all other equirl, instrumenrs, rhe Companv
makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument bv instrument basis, to classifrl the
same either as at fair r-alue through other comprehensive income (FVOCD or flar value through profit or
loss (F\'"IPL)' Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequenrll' transferred to
statement of profit and loss. Hower.er, the Companlr transfers the cumulative gain or loss u,rthin equin'.
Dividend on such investments are recognised in statement of proFrt and loss unless the dir.,idend cllariv
represents a recove{. o[ part oi the cost of the investment.

Investments in mutual funds - Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

Fair value changes on instruments measued at F\rTPL is recognised in the Statement of Profit and I-oss unless the
Companr has elected to measute such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes on instruments measuted at
FVOCI are recognised in OCI.,{mounts recognised in OCI are not subsequenth' reclassiFred to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

D e- re ngtitio n offi nan dal arett
A financial asset (or, w'here applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a gtoup of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Companr's standalone balance sheet) wheo:

The rights to receir,.e cash florvs from the asset ha'e expired, or
The Compan)'has transferred its nghts to receive cash flo'uvs flrom the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pav the received cash flows in full wrthout material delav to a rhird parn' under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Companv has tansferred substantiallv all the risks and rervards of the asset,
or (b) the Companv has neither transferred nor retained substantiallv all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asser.

Continuing inrolvement that takes the form of a guarantee oyer the transferred asset is measured at the lorver of
the original caring amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Companr could be
required to repar.

I npairn e * of Ji ru a r,ial amtt
In accordance w-ith Ind AS 109 'Financial Iostruments', the Companl applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impurment loss for Ffrancial assers.

ECL is the t'eighted-average o[ drfference benveen all contracrual cash t'lc-rs..s that are due to the ComPanf ln
accordance with rhe contract and all the cash florvs thar the Compan)- erpects to receive, discounted at the original
eiiectir-e interest rate, s'ith the respec tive risks of default occurring as the rveights. \\'l-ren estimating the cash florvs.
the Companl is required ro consider

C. -\ll contracrual tefl:ns oI the t]nancial assets /
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o Cash florvs from the sale of collateral held ot other credir enhancements that ate integral ro the contractual
terns.

(i) Trade receiuables

In respect of trade receivables, the Companv applies the simplified approach o[ Ind AS 109 'Financial
Instruments', r.'r'hich requrres measurement of loss allowance 

^t 
an amount equal to lifeume expected credit losses

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default evenrs over the
expected life of a frnancial instrument.

(ii) O tber f nar dal asrctt

In respect of its other financial assets, the Companv assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased signiFrcandy since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased signiEcantly since initial
recognition, the Companv measures tle loss allowance at an amount equal to l2-month expected credit losses, else
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

\\hen making this assessment, the Compaov uses the chaage in the risk of a default occuring over the expected
Life of the Fmancial asset. To make that assessment, the Companv compares the risk of a default occuring on the
Enancial asset as at the balance sheet date with the riik of a default occuring on the financial asset as at the date of
rnitial tecognition and considers teasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of srgnificant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Companv assumes that
the credit risk on a Enancial asset has not increased significandy since imual recogrution if the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative fi nancial liabilities

I nitia/ recognitizil and med.rurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at iniual recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings and par.ables, net of direcdy attributable transaction costs.

The Companr"s financial liabilities include trade and other parables, securih' deposits, loans and borrowings and
other financial liabilities including bank overdrafts and financial guarantee contacts.

S a bteq ue n I m eas ureme n I

Subsequent to initial recogrunon, the measurement of Frnancial liabi.liues depends on their classification, as

described belosr

I-oans and borrouings

After rnitral tecognition, interest-bearing loans and borrorvings are subsequendr measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of proFrt and loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as rvell as through the EIR amortisation process. .\mortised cost is calculated b1'taking inro accounr
ant' discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as frnance costs in the statement of protit and loss.

P- i n a n ci a I gu drd il le e L'0 il lrd L'tr-

Financial guarantee contracts ate those contracts that require a pavment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
Ioss it incurs because the specified parn' fails to make a palment rvhen due in accordance with the terms of a debt
insftument. Financial guarantee contracts ate recognized as a Enancial liabilin'at the time the guarantee is issued at
tair value, adiusted tbr tansaction costs that are directlr attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequenth.
the liabiln' is rneasured ar dre higher o[ th
requircments oi Ind -\S t(19 and the amount

\pected loss allorvance derermined as per impairmente
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'

-\-Frnancial liabilitr is de-recogntsed when the obligation under the liabilin is discharged or cancelled or expires.
\\hen an existing Frnancial liabilin is replaced bv another ftom the same lender on subitantiallv different terms, or
the terms of an existing iiabiLir are substanr-ialh' modified, such an exchange ot modiFrcation is rleated as the de-
recognirion of the. original liabilin' and the recognition of a new- liabilil. The difference in the respecrive car4.ing
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3) Reclassifrcation of frnancial instruments

The Companr determines classiFrcation of Frnancial assets and liabilities on initial recogmtion. Aftet initial
recognition, no reclassiEcation is made for Frnancial assets which are equitv instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be nftequent. The Companv's senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of extemal or intemal changes which ate
significant to the Companv's operations. Such changes are evident to extemal parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to petform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Companv reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassiEcation prospecdvely from the reclassiEcation date
rvhich is the fust day of the immediatel]' next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Companv does not restate anv preriouslv recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or hterest.

4) Offsetting of Enancial ineruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currendy enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneouslv.

m) Fait value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments such as derivative instruments etc at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fait value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilitv in an ordedv
transaction bettveen market Participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measrred using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market paticipants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-Enancial asset takes
into account a market participant's abilin to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or br selling it to another market paticipant that rvould use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Companv uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fait value, maximising the use of reler.ant obsen'able inputs and minimising the use of
unobsen-able inputs.

All assets and liabi.lities for which fair r,zlue is measured or disclosed in the hnancial shtements are categorised
within the fair r-alue hietarch,v, described as follovs, based on the lovest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a rvhole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) matket prices in active markets fot identical assets or lixbiLities

. Ler-el 2 - Yaluation techniques for rvhich the lorv-est [etelinpur that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directh or indirecth- obsen-able

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for n'hich the lorvest ler-el input rhar is stlnihcant to the fair value
measuremefl t is unobsenable

For assets and Liabilities that are recognised in the Enancial statements on a recuring basis, the Companv
determines rvhether transfers have occurred bets.een ler.els in the hierarchv bv re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lorvest level input that is signiFrcant to the fair rzlue measurement as a u'hole) ar the end of each repoting
period.

F-xternal \:aluers are inr-olr-ed tor valuation sets, slrch as properties and Llnqlroted financial assets.
21nd signitrcant liabilities. sLrch as c()nri
2urnualll br- the managelnent. \'ah,rers
rvhether protessional srandards are main

Inr.olr-ernent of e\rernal valuers is decided upon
market knorvledge. reputatron. independence and

c()nside

COUNT
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For the purpose of fair value disdosures, the Companv has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabiliq' and the level of the fair value hierarchy as erplahed
abore.

This note summarises accounting policv for fair value. Other fafu value related disclosures are given in the reler.ant
notes.

o Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 4 and 36).

o Quantitative disclosutes of fair value measurement his1arsh1. (note 36).

. Investrnent in unquoted equity shares (note 68).

. Inyestrnent properties (note {).

. Finarcial instruments (including those caried at amonised cost) (note 36 and 37).

n) Eamings pet shate

Basic eatnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit ot loss for the period attributable to equiq.
shareholders (aftet deducting attributable taxes) by the rveighted avetage number tf .q"ir;. ,hrre, o.rt.t^rrilini
during the. period. The u'eighted-average numbet of equitv shares outstanding during tire period is adjusted foi
el'ents such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and .*.rr. ,h".. spLit (consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number of equin shares outstanding, without a correspondiog change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equitv
shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted fot the efiects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

o) Chenges in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standatds

The Companl applied for the first-time cettain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
be5'inning on or after I April 202-1, but do not have a material impact on the standalone financial statementi of the
Companv.

Ind AS 116: Ieases - The I{CA notified the Companies (Indian .\ccounting Standatds) Second Amendment Rules,
202'1, rvhich amended Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liabiliq. in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment
specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liabilin arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise an1' amount of the gain or loss thar relates to the right of
use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual reporing periods beghning on or after 1 April 2024 and
must be apPlied reuospectivelv to sale and leaseback transactions enteted into after the date of initial appLication of
Ind .{S 1 16.

These amendments had no matedal impact on the stxndalone finaocial statements of the Companv during the vear.
Ind AS I l7: lnsurance - The \Iinism' of Corporate -\ffairs (IIC-\) notified the Ind .\S 117, Irrr.arce Contracts,
lide notificatiou dated 12 August 202-1, under the Companies (Inrlian -\ccounting Standards) Lmendment Rules,
202.1, v'hich is effectir.e from annual reporting periods beginning on or after I .\pri1 202{.

Ind -\S 117 Insurance Conffacts is a comprehensir:e new accounting stanclard tbr insuraflce contracts coveflng
recognirion and measurement, presentarion and drsclosure. Ind -\S 117 replaces Ind -\S 10-l Insurance Conracrs
Ind -\S 117 applies ro all q?es of insurance contracts, regardless of the n:pe of endties that issue them as well as ro
certain guaranrees and financial instruments u'ith discretionan participation t-eanrres; a fes, scope exceptions will
appl)'. Ind -\S 117 is based on a general model, suppl emenred b\

' -\ specitlc adaptation flor conrracts r.r,,ith dir
' -\ simplitled approaclr (rhe premium alloca

rLrres (the r.anable fee approach): and

OUNTANTS

L

* *
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These amendments had no material impact on the standalone Frnancial statements ofthe Companv during the vear.

New and amended standards, not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not vet effectir:e as on the date.

p) Signifrcant management iudgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Companv's standalone hnancial statements requires management ro make judgements,
es_umate: and assumptions that affect the reponed amounrs of reven.,.i, 

"*p.or..jr.ets 
and liabilities,-and the

related disclosures and the disclosute of contingent liabilities. Uncertainry. abtut these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that requite a material adjustment to the cam'ing amount of asserc o;[abilities affected in
future periods.

Signifi cant management iudgements
The following are signiEcant management judgements in ,pplyirg the accounting policies of the Companv that
have the most signiEcant effect on the standalone financial siaiements.

Rengtition oJ defened tax a.$etr 'T"lte extent to u'hich defeffed tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the ptobabiliq of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Eulaatiott of idicatort for it@afumerrt 0f asretr - The evaluation of applicabilitv of indicators of impairment of assets
requires assessment of several extemal and intemal factors *hiih could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets

Classficaliotr o;f hascs - T}:,e Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. T'[re classification of the
leasing arrangement as a Enance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, includin& but
not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estiiated
certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to tle asset's ..orro-i. life, ptoportion of present
value of minimum lease palments to fair value ofleased asset and extent of specialized naturJ of the leased asset.

Detcrniting the leat tcrm oJ evntmch witb rcrcwal cnd temtimtiot optiuflr (CompaAy as lessee)- The Companv determiaes
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an opnon to extend
the lease if it is reasonabh' certain to be erercised, or anv periods covered b1- an option to terminate ihe lease, if it is
reasonablv cettain not to be exercised. The Company has ser.eral lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Companv applies judgement in evaluating rvhether it is rcasonably certain whether ot not
to exercise the option to renew or teminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the cornmencement date, the
Companv rexssesses tlre lease term if thete is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
contr_ol and affects its abili6'to exercise or not to exercise the option to renerv or to terminate (e.g. construction of
srgnificant leasehold impror-ements or signifrcant customisation to the leased asset).
InPain?le oJ'-linannal atxtt - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates obsewed over expected
life, the management assesses rhe expected credit loss on outstanding Frnancial assets.

Pmitiarc - "\t each balance sheet date basis rhe management judgment. changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Companl assesses the requirement of provisions against rhe outstanding contingent liabilities. Ho'*iver. ihe actual
future outcome mar be different from rhis judgement.

Rewrue.fmn rvfiracb tritb ruiomen- Tlne Companl has applied judgements that signiEcantlr affect the determination
of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts uith customers.

Significant estimates
The ker assumptions conceming the Furure
rhat hare a significanr nsk o[ causing a

described belos,. The Compan]'based its

olrrces of estimation uncertainn' at ttre repc)rting dare.
to the carn-ing arnollnrs of assets and liabilities. are
timates c)r1 parameters ar,ailable \\:hen the standalone

lad us

tinancial statements \\-ere prepared. E\is LI AIlC d assumptions about furure der-elopments, ho\\-e\-er.

kI"l
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mar change due to market changes. or circumstances atising that are berond the contol of the Companr.. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when ther occur.

Net realbable vciue of iruentory -Tlte determination of net realisable value of inventon involves estimates based on
prevailing market conditions, current prices and expected date of commence-.rrt 

"rd 
completion of the project,

the estimated 
_future 

selling price, cost to complete proiects aod selling cost. The Companl also involves ,i..iali.i
to perform valuations of inventories, rv-herever requited.

UseJul ltuu oJ depeciabh/anoninble aset - Ilanagement reviev.s its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utiliq' of the assets. Uncertainries in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that mayih"og. the otiliq. ofassets.

laluation 0f iruenflrefi PruPert) - Investment property is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 'Investrnent
lt?p."il thete is a rcquirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet daie. The Company engaged
independent valuation specialists to determine the fair value of its investrnent propert,' as ,r .eportirrg- dat.I ih.
determination of the fair value of investment properties requires the use of es-timates' such as 

-future 
cash flows

from tle assets (such as lettings, future revenue sreams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental
matters and the ovemll repair and condition of the propern) and discount rates applicabie to ihose assets. In
addition, development risks (such as construction and letting dsk) are also ut<in irrt" consid.ention urhen
determining the fair value of the properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Inpaiment oJ Pnperg' Pllrrt equbne , Inurtne pmpertiu antl CW4P - Impairment exists when the carr).ing value of an
asset or cash geoerating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, vzhich is the highet ofits fait value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are deriyed
ftom the budgets. The recorrrable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as rvell as the
expected future cash-inflovs and the grovth mte used.

Defned bercJit obligation @BO) - llanagement's est.irnate of the DBO is based on a number of unde;1ing
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortalitr', discount rate and anticipation of futute salan' increasesl
Variation in these assumptions mar signiFrcandf impact the DBO amount and the annual de6ned benefit expenses.

Fair valae measrcmc ditclosm - N{anagement applies r.aluation techniques (induding but not limited to the use of
iliiquiditv discount on investrnents) to determine the fair value of financial instruments (whete active matket quotes
are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consisrent wrth how.market participanrs
would price the instrument.

L'alaation oJ itmtnent it ubidiaiu,joitrl Nenlt/rel atd d$ltioteJ - Investrnents tr subsidianes, jornt venhrres and
associates ate carried at cost. .\t each balance sheet date, the management assesses the indicators of impairment of
such investments. This requires assessment of ser-eral extemal and intemal tactor including capitalisation rate, kel
assumption used in discounted cash flow models (such as revenue gto*th, unit price and discount rates) or sales'
comparison method v'hich mav affect the carn-ing value of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
as socla res.

C HARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

ffhit spuce hui been intentional/1' le/i blank,l
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Particulars As at
31 March 2025

{). lo
0.10

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at
3l March 2024

o.l0

4. Other Financial Assets

(Unsccured, considercd go<,ds)

- .Secunn I)eposrts

5. Non Current Tax Assets(net)
-lncome -['as 

Pard C{et oi Prx-isrr.rns)

6. Inventories
Land, devel<)pme[t and construcdon r.".ork in prt_rgress

'('I'he above inrenton' rcpresenrs l

'omples on land parcel orvned b1,

!u.r to der.elop the enr-isaged proj

7. Cash and cash equivalents
llalanccs rvith schcduled banks

8. Other bank balances
Balances wrth Scheduled Banks
- Fised Deposrt srtlr rematning maturitr of more than rhree monrhs but less than nvelre monrhs

9. l.oans
(ll n secured, (-on sidered goocf)

l-oans ro Relared parues

10. Other Current Assets
.\dvance thr land purchirse

l,ess: pror-ision tor doubrtul ad.r.ances

(Thii ,p,.t,t /tu.; heen intentionu/$ /t/t bbnkl

*

0.10

().()5

0.0s

7 19.t8

7t9.18

a land parcel situated at Reis \l4gos, Goa der-ekrpment & construcdon rvork in progress nll date. The company rntends t9 de'ei.p a residcntial
the cnmpant for the PurPose of selling the same- The profect is currentlv in the suspended state. Ho'..,.'eo'e., the compan" intencls to cr,rnrinue its
iect rn the near future.)

l.-t9 l,{ )5

3.49 r.05

-i.52

3.52

4,57-1.5,t

4,573.54

490.07

(4eo.0l

6.42

6.42

+9{).()7

09(1.07)

CHARTERED
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Particulars

Equity
11. EquiW share capital
(A) Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital and par value per share

Authorised Capital
10,()U() (previous _r'ear - l{),([)()) Erlui6. Shares oi t lil/- each

lssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
l0,tX)() {prer-ious vear - 10,f)f)0) tirluin Shares of { lrtl_ cach

As at 31 March 2025

1.{ )( )

1.00

Lr){)

1.00

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at 31 March Z0Z4

1.0()

1.00

-
1.0u

1.00

-

(B) Reconciliation of number of equity* shares outstanding at the and at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at
3l March 2024

Equity shares

,\t the beginnins r.,f the vear

,\dd : (-hange during rhe vear

V 
At the end ofthe year

No. of shares No. of shares
(.r.1()

0.10

0.1(l

0.10

Details of

and restrictions attached to shares

details of the

more than 570 shares

Rights, preferences
dividends and

( including restrictions on distributions ofand restrictions
of attached to the class of shares

Tvpe of shares

rn pr()portron t() d:e number of equrn shares held bv the shareholders.

(.ompanr

I'he has class of sharesConrpanr' onlt value 0equtn' share holderEach oihaung PAI Per equrn'
ISshares t(rentrltled vote{ )ne share theln ofevent of thePer the holdershqudatron of sharesequrf\'
entrtledbr recer!et{) asseIS theof fier ff haall Lbrlrtres.rerTxalnlng (-ompanv llre rstnbutrond: besettlng

Ec1ui4

Name of the shareholder T-vp.
No of shares held in
aggregate by parent

comPanv
D] -F Flome De'r'elcrpers Lrmited (?arent companr) along *.rth rts nr,rminees Etluin I r t,()0(l

Name of the shareholder No of shares held
in the co.

Percentage ofshares
held

D[,F Homc l)evel Limited tC rvith its nominees 1[),(l0r) 10{,)

Shares held at the end of the

Particulars

12. Other Equitv
Rctained carning

Statement of profit and loss

.\s pcr last iral:rnce shcer

I)roirt/ (l,r,ss) fi rr thc \,car

.\dcl: ( )thcr c( )mprchcnsir c irlc,mc
\et surplus/(deficir) tn rllc statemcnt o[protit and k,ss

Equin componenr of compulsorih- convertible debentures
\s pcr Irst balencc shccr

\ddrrron dunng rhc vcar

[)elcrion Juring rlrc lcar
&

1.9o1.rt-l

2,59( ).21

(3,7e5.e .1)

I )*Rtnt

8,)i18.( x )

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at March 31,2024

(6.38.i.2ri)

(2.t{8)

(t ,18(r 16,

B.rli8.r)r )

ri.28tt.( x )

a

L

31 March 2025 31March2024

Number 0.,6 holding Number
o//o

holding

7o change during the vear

I)[.] j I {omc [.imucd u"ith its n<-rminccsal l(),r)t}{) I lJ(,lo u I | ),r )()( | 10()" 0

Total Other Equin

Co

*

1,901.94

()ne c,f t.'l

urll

As at March 31,2025

CHARIER
E



13. Trade pavable
- ro \lSllE fr.efer \orc \o. -lr)
- ()rher rhan trISNII..

Trade Payables ageing schedule

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Bhamini Rcal Estate Developers private Limited
cIN-U45201HR2006PTC106?90

2nd Floor, DLF Gateu'av To*'er, R Block, DLF ciry, phase [II, Gunrgram, Fra6.ana - 122 o0z
Notes to Financiar Statements for the -vear ended 3r Match 20zS

Particulars As at
3lMarch2A25

0.94

o ()5

0.99

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at

3'l,M'xc!.l.2024

t).66

( ).{ )4

0.70

Outstanding for following vears from due date of pavment#
Particualrs

I-ess than 1

Year
l-2 vear 2-3 year 2-3 yeat

Total

\lS\[tr-\or duc- 0.9+ 0.94
^\IS\IE-DUC
C)thers

0.05 0.()5
red dues-r\lS\lE

Di ted dues-C)thers

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Particualrs
Outstanding for following rears from due date of pavment#

TotalI-ess than 1

vear
l-2 year 2-3 year 2'3 vear

IISNIE-Not due

trIS\{E-Due

Others

dues-IIS\lE

0.66 0.66

0.04 0.04

ducs-C)thers

# similar rnformation is gir.en rvhere no due dare of pavment rs specrtied rn that case disclosure is from the date of the transaction.

14. Other financial liablities
lnterest accrued on (-(-D

15. Other currenr liablities
( )rhers

Sraruron'dues pavable

1-,Jurrent tax liabilio (net)
(-urrcnr ,r-t 11"6iIrr, (ner)

0.75

0.75

r). l7
0.17

tt(,+.ti5

804.8s

0.75

0.75

o l+
0.14

(["/iit rpatt lu; heen inhntionall1 h/t blank1

o
O( Co

qr,

*
-o

*

c HARIERED
ACCOUN IANTS
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in Lakhs

17. Revenue from operations
- Salc oiland

18. Other income
Interest income

- Interest on Flred deposits

- I.oans and deposits

19. Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others
(.r>st oiland, pkrts, de'elopment nghts, construcred propertics ancl orhers

1,501.79

4,507.79

0.26

126.16

057

t26.42 0.57

\i r-.62

L,177.62

20. Finance cost
Inreresr on compulsorih' convertible debenturcs

21. Other expenses
Rent

Rates and taxes

l.egal and professional

Payment to auditor
.\udit fee

Reimbursement of expcnses

GST

(fbit qan bat been intentiona$ /eft blankl

& o

(r

*
EL

0.83 0.83
0.83 0.83

0.82

0.03

1.02

0.93

0.02

0.98

0.62

0.27

0.16

0.62

0.02

0.11

2.98 2.62

C I^iARIERED

Paftis'rhtt Forrheyearenffi
31 March fl)25

For tbe year elrdcd 31 March
2024

7
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22.Tax expense
(.urrcnt tax

Defcrrcd tax

-I'he mai'r components .f income til( expense and rhe reconcilia
tax expensc in profit or loss are as fcrilows;

862.55

862.55

tion of expense based on the dnmestic effective tax rare <f at 25.77oto and the reported

Accounting ptofit/ loss before income tax
.\t c<tuntn''s statllt()r\ income t,r\ ratc ,.tf 25.1lo,,o

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:'l'ax not recognised to the cxtent of adjustment ()f carn'frrrw,ard unabsorbed l.sses

Net loss attributable to equity shareholders
I)roflr/ Loss afrer ra-x

Weighted avetage number of equity shares
T,tal number of ecluin' shares outstanding ar rhe beginning of the r-ear
Ibtal number of equin- shares .utstanding ar rhe end of the 

'ear$ eighted average number <-,f e<1uirv shares used to compute basic earnings per sharc

Eamings per equity share
Basic

.minal value of equiw share fi.s)
Veightccl xveragc number of ecluin'shares used to compure dilurecl carnings per share

Diluted

(This sparc hat l)een /efr blank)

3,452.79

869 06

(6.52)

(2.88)

(0.12)

0.72
862.5;

r, ,r. Eamings/(Loss) per equity ahare
tiamiogs Per Share (EPS) is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders' of the parent Company. Basic eaminp per share iscomputcd using the rveighted average number of shares outstanding during the !,ear. (irmpulsorill, co0vertible deb.n,ur.. ,r" rreated as eguivalmt ofequin'shar frr rhe purpose'fbasic eamings per equitl' share. D u;d ea..rings pe. share is computed using the weighted average number ofc.mmonand dilutive common equivalent shares outstandiog dr,ring the rear iocluding s'hare optioos, excepi whe.e the result wiruld be aoti-dilutive.

2590.23

828.90

828.90

828 90

3.12

10.00

001

3.12

in Lakhs

(2.88)

828.90

828.90

828 9i)

(0.003)

10.00

001
(0.003)

C HART ERED

$1o*t::r_,"i:*Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31

March 2025
For the year ended 31

March ?.0?A

\"
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cI N-U45201HR2006PT C106790

2nd Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloc\ DLF City, phase III, Gurugram, Frary ana - tzz 002
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

Ratio analysis for the year ended March 3l, Z02S

6

(-urrcnt .\sset J 1,904.28(.trrrcrrr l{atio
(-urrcnt Liabilitics 806 -6

65-
1.59

1.19 ,- .66 (ee 45)
Due t<> loan given

the vear
I)cbt

2
Debt-Equin
Rati<r \\ \.\

Net C)peraung

IncomeJ
[)ebt Serv'ice

Coverage Ratio
Debt Service

\,\ \.\

Net Income 2,590.23
+

Return on Equin
Rati<r Sharcholdcrs [:c1uin. -1.493.07

0.58
1,902.91

(0 00) (381.68)
Due to increase in

revenue

COGS
f

Inventon'
turn()ver ratro \ve Inventon' \.\ \\

\et Sales
'Irade Receivables

turnr>ver ratio, ,\v Receivables
\.\ \.\

Net Purchasc
turnover ratl()

rade pavables

.\ \.\ \.\
Sales r-rr COGS

8
Net crrprtal

tumrlver rati<.r \ct .\sscts \.\ \.\
Net Pnrfit

9 \et profit ratio
Salcs

\.\ \\
Net Profit 23 05

t0
Return on (-apital

emplorcd (-apital F-mploved -+.+93.0r
0.58

1,902.8+
(0.00) (536 1 1)

Due to increase in
re\:enue

Net return on
investmentll Return on

investment
Cost of Investment

\\ \.\

1 Currenr Rado Balances + ( )thcr current assets & Currenr I.iabilities= frade pavables +

(-urrent ssets =lnventon' + (las & Eclui ts *Other

( )ther ljinancial l-iabiliues

v Debt/F.quin' Ratio (_(-
tltq -apit'al ,iq')

otalI u +Debr rrcn t \ ( )It- Llrre nt 1.& otalBorrowing Borrorving)
[.- u1n -i-uln' hrrcS ( ( )therq rl

J Dcbt Sen'icc (.or-erage Rario
\ct ( )perati,g Inc,me = f'-arnings bef.re cxcepti'nal itcms. Intcrest xfld'['rx & Debr Sen'ice =fiina,cc (-.sr * prircipal Rcpavmcnrs ma,le duri.g

the peri,d for n,n-currenr b()rrowi.gs (incl,tling current \faturities)

+ Rcturn on equrfi rati<r
et Fiarnings =5et Profir/[-os,s aircr taxcs) & Shareholdcrs' [:.c1uin

=['-c1uit1 Share (.apital -r ( )thcr t'.t1uin.

\

:) Inverrtr )n tllrn()\'cr
Iarrd. plots. dcvckrpmcnt rights. c()n*{rructc(l

propcrtics ar:d ,thcrs) & .\r'crage Invent,rics = (( )pening Invent.n *

(-ost of grxrds sold = {(-ost oi

(-losing Inr-cnron') / 2

6 I'radc rcccival;lc turnor.cr ratio
Rc''enuc ir,rn ,peratirrrs = \et (-rcdit Sales & -\r-cregc'['radc Rcceir.ables

= (( )pc.ing'['radc ltecci'abrcs + (-l,sing'r'radc Recei'ablesT/2

I'radc parirl>le turnor-cr rario \ct (-rcdit Purchasc & .\r,crage rcc()unts par';rble = (()pening'l'rade
Pavbles + (.krsing'['radc pavables;/2

Iirtel Salcs - 'lirral 
I

B \ct cepit.rl tunl()\'cr rrrti()

I \ct pr()t-ir rxri() I'ax + Rcvcnue tlorn r )tl s\
l0 Ilctllfll ()n cirpitrll cmplored tcrcst) & 'l'otd l,lqtrin'= fircluin Shere

( )rhcr t..c1uin'j

I.UI'l'= \ II

ll Itcturlt r)n in\.cstrncnt rtt - ( -ost oi Irti cstrncntS

*
\EL \{

atSl As at 31
Amountin

Lakhs
Amount in

Lakhs than?.S o/"
Yariation Reasoa of

variation

S.No i Ratios
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Bhamini Real Estate Developers private Limited
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2nd Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Brock, DLF city, phase III, Gurugram, Haryan a - 122 002
Notes to Financial starements for the year ended 3lM,,'ch z02s

Financial Instrumenrs

(i) Fair values hierarchy

Financial assets are measurcd at Fair value in rhe financial statement and are grouped into three level r>f fair value hierarch'..fhe three lcvels are defined based on the obsen'abrlin, of signiFrcant input to the measurement as follrws:

Level 1: (]uoted pnce (unadjusted; rn acrir.e markct for the frnancial instrumcnt
Level 2: lnput other than cluoted prices rncluded w'ithin ler-el 1 thar are obsen.able fcrr the assets or liabiliues, either directlr. or
Level 3: tlnr>bsen,ablc rnputs f<rr the assers or labilities

(ii) Fair assets measured il fait value-recurring fair value measurements- Nil

(iii) Fair value of instrumenrs measured at amortised cost:

0v) Financial insrruments by category
For amordsed cost instruments, carning value represeflts the best esdmate of fair value.

(") Risk management
'l'he (-ornpanr''s activities cxpose it to market risk, litluiclin nsk and crcclit risk. 'l-he (.ompanr.'s B.arcl of l)irect.rs has 

'r.erallrc-sptlnsibtlin' filr thc establishment and overstght of thc (-ompanr''s nsk management framework.'l'his n()te explains the s.urces of risk
rvhich the cntin' is exp.scd to and lrrtw the eflnn manages rhc risk and th" relat".l impact rrr thc fin:rncial statemcnts

(A) Credit risk

nsk anscs rln licluid ilS:-et-s, tl()n-currerlt iinancial assets, derivative assets, rradc;rnd orher reccir-ables.'l'he c()mpan\-d,es n,t ha'e a'r,
denvarive asscrs and in rcspuct of cash and cash ecluir"alerrts, the sutl rm()unt is irr current rcc()ur1t wirh Scheduled Bank rvhere chances .f
tlcfaultirre l]'tinimum''['he maxirnum exP()surc to thc credit nsk is eclual to thc carrring.ulr()unt rlf thc crxlpanr.,s.ther furancial .\sscts

CHARTERED
COUNTANTS

\t

\,'

o

c

0. t0

3..19

3.52

0.10

3..+9

3.52

0.10

1.05

6.+2

0. l0
1.05

6.+2

It lther l.inancial .\ssers

Cash and equn.alents
()ther bank ba.lances

Total financial assets

inancial assets

Level 3
Level 3

I.evel 3

7.tt 7.tt 7.57 7.57

0.99

0.75

0.99

0.75

0.70

0.75

0.70

0.75

I Financial liabilities
-l'rade 

pavables

Interest accrued on CCD
Total financial liabilities

l,evel 3
Level 3

1.74 1.74 1.45 t.45

0.10

3.49

3.52

0.10

1.05

6.12

Financial assets
( )ther Financial .-\ssers

(-ash and etluivalents
()ther bank balances

Total financial assers

l,evel 3
Level 3

l-evel 3

7.11 7.57

0.99

0.75

0.70

0.75

Financial liabilities
'l rade palablcs

Intercst :rccrucd on (-(.1)

Total financial liabilities

Lcr el 3

l.evel 3

1.74 1.45

qr

EL

*

ur

Level CaryingYetue F&Yabe CrrryicgYahi' FeirYalue

Particutars L€Yel
I

F1VTPL FVOCI Amortised coet FYTPL FVOCI
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Bhamini Real Estate Developers private Limited
cI N-U45201H R2006 PT C1067 90

2nd Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF city, phase [II, Gurugram, Haryan.r - 122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3lll,,.ch 20zS

(B) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidin' risk management implies maintatning sufficient cash antl marketable securities and the availabilin of funrJing
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilitres to meet obligations when due. f)ue t. the narure of the business,
the Compan[ maintains flexibilin'in tundrng bv marntuning avarlabilih. under cr>mmitted faclities.

\lanagement monitors rolhng filrecasts of the (-ompanr-'s liquidin posirion antl cash and cash equivalents on the basis .f
expected cash florvs' -l-he Compan)' takes int. account rhe liquidin' of the market in which th. 

".,tin, 
operates.

Marurities of financial liabilities
'11-re tables beklw anahses the (-ompanr-'s financial liabilitres into relevant maturin groupings based on their contracrual maturiues:

As at 31Match2025

As at 31 M.a,rch2024

C) Market risk

a) Interest rate risk
Liabilitiesi)

'fhe companr-'s fi'xed rate borrowings are carried af amortised cost. I'hev are therefore not subiect to interest rate risk as
defined rn Ind AS 107, since neither the carning amount nor the furure cash flows will flucruate because of a change in market
interest rates.

ii) Assets

'fhe compant''s fixed deposits are carrietl at 6.xed rate.'Iherefore oot subiect t6 interesr rate nsk as clefined in Ind -\S 107,
since neither the carn-ing amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

26 Capital managemenr
'fhe ('ompau manages its capital to ensure that thc Companv will be able to continue as going concern while maximizrng the

r' ' return to stakeholders through opumisation of debt and equin,balance. The capital strLlcture of ,n. Companv consists.f netv
debt and total equin' of the C-ompanr-.

The Cttmpan\'ts not subiect to afl\ externalh' rmposecl caprtal requircments.

(This qa,v har- been intentiona$ leJi blankl

*

q

*

'frade pal'able 0.99 0.99
Interest accrued on (lCD 0.75 0.75
Total 1.74 1.74

'l'rade pa)'able 0.70 0.70
lnterest accrucd On (,Ct) 0.75 t).15
Total 1.45 1.45

C HARIERED
ACCOUNTANTS

EL

Pagticrrlers Lese rftaa l year l-5 years
Morc thao 5

yeafit Toal

Paticulrrs Lem th,rn Iyear l-5 yelts More tbaa 5

-yeafs
Total

I

I

-l



Bhamini Real Estate Developers Private Limited
(. l N-1r.152() l l)L2{ }061vl'(. I 17562

and l,lor,r, l)l .lr (i:rrts;r\"lorvcr l( llIrcli. t)].lj (.rrv, l)hirsr,'-lll (iurtturrrrn lllt lll(X)2

Notes to Financial Statenrents for the year ended 31 March 2025

)1

Name of the related parties

Itaidhani Intcstments & ;\gcnctcs l)rtlatc I.imrted

l)l.l; Lirnitcd (l)arcnr (-<tmparrv oIl)l ,l' llomc l)cvclopers l.imited)

l)l .l; IIornc [)cvekrpcrs ].imircd

l)l .li l'.xclusivc likxrrs l)rivatc Lrmircd

Ll n-aslrr lntiarcch l)rivatc l,irnitcd
({ in lakhs)

Details of transactions q,ith the related party/parties during the vear/previous year in the ordinarv- course of business'

Parent Company Fellow Subsidiary

As at
31 Ivlarch 2025

As at
37March2024

As at
3l March 2025

As at
31March2024

(.r s, rrilr' (.,,rrlcrtiblc' l)cberrrurcs tt.2tttr.(x) ti,2ult.rx )

Intcrest rrccrucd on (-(-[) nct oi'l ().75 0.75

l,r r,trts +,459.99

Intcrcst rcccrvlrblc 1 r 1.55

I itlui rv Sharc capitirl l .o() Lt)t t

28 Contingent Liabilities

29

\Lirch :014:\il) 
/

.cpon) n, i.l(tclmmc whcthcr fic rqdffimts,,f il,om ltulc has b.{a mct'

v

&Co

* *

Rclated party discbsures

lntirrmariorr requircd ro bc disclosed under IND r\S 24 on "ll.elated l)arq' l)iscl<>sures"

a) Name and nature of relationship with related parties:

Re lationship
(i) Uldmatc l)arent (-ompanv :

(ii) Intcrmediate l)arent (.ompant' :

(ui) l)arent (-ornpany :

(ir') lJcllorv Subsidian (.ompanv :

€

EU \

Transaction during the year Parent Company Fellow Subsidiary

As at
3lMatch2025

As at
3tMarch2024

As at
31 March 2025

As at
37March2024

Intcrcst c\pcnsc on (.(-l) ( ).tl,.i ( ).tt.1

S:rlc oi l.and 1,5,)7.19

Loar-r (iilcrr -1.+6().( )()

lntcrcsr Incomc 126.16

l{r'r1t ('\l)cnSc 0.91 I ).til

CHARTERED
ACCOUNIANIS

Balance at end
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Bhamini Real Estate Developers private Limited
cI N- U45201H R2006PTC 1067 90

2nd Floor, DLF Gateq'av Tower, R Block, DLF city", phase III, Gurugram, Haryana - lz2 002
Notes to Financiar Statements for the vear ended 31 March 20zS

30 Details of dues to ll{icro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 to the extent of information available s'ith the Companv:

Th€ abot€ information rcSatding rlic.o. smrtl and M€dium Enftprises ha! beei deremined ro the extenr such parries har.e beer idendfied on rhe brsis of information
a\eilable eith the companl. No other tr,Nacdon ha'e been enrerei-ith supptierc as defined under the uicro, Smail and uediu- en*li;r." o"r=rop-"nr -\6, al06 orherrhrn discloscd above. The same has been rclied upon br' the audiro.s.

The C.onpanr folloq s notiEed IND .\.S 12 - Income Ta.yes, as pcr secion 133 or'Companies ,\ct 4t 3 reid wrrh rules made rheEunder. The (rmpanr ha! mcurred tosses in

tarable income. the compant pnxlenrlr deoded not to !€cog'ise asser on cuffenr re\ies r€ar a.d carrt forwa.d busin€ss losses.

openting h Iodia vhich is considered ,s a single ge%faphical segrnenr

Il Othcr !t nrtory irfolm..br for th. yc.rcrdcd Mrch 31, Z!2S.d M.rch 31,2(D4
(i) The compav do€s not har€ anv benami propert!, where any prccecdiog hrs been initiaced or pending againsr rhe (i,mpanv for holding ans benami propenv under rheBenami Transrcrions (Pmhibirion) Act, l98g (a5 of 1988) and rutes made rheLnder.

(i.i)'flre ComPanI do not hare an1 transactrons +.irh companies sruck off uftIer Secdon 24g of the Comprnies Acr, $1j.

(iii) The comprny do not ha.e anv chalges or sausturion whch rs yer ro bt .egilre*d eirh Regise r oa crmpaoies b€yond rh€ s11ru6rv peflod.

G'.) The Companr haye nor rradd or inlesrcd m CtT-?m Cu,renq or 
'inual 

Currmc-' during rhe financir.l year.

lnrefr€dien, shall:

(a) directh or indrrectll lend or i.\ est m othet Per$ns or ennoes idenrified m a.J manner $'harsoeltr br or on behatfofthe Compa'l.v (utumare Benefrcianes); or

\aZ 1U p-ia. -' g"ararr€e, securi.,r o' rhe hk€ ro or on behatfof the UItimaE BeneEciffres.

or orheN.isc) th rhc Companr shall:

ft) proirje any guaranree, secunr.v or the Iike on behatfoathc Utrimare Bcncficiffies.

un,.lcr rh( Income-r^ \cr. 196I (such as. search (r sun.er ,,r an! orhcr) ftlet.mr p(trrsmns of rlle Income,m\ \fi. l()(ll

rht guideLnes on uilful Jrt-rutr(rs ,s:tucd br thr Rc*.- g"nl,,i Ind,r.

number , 
' 
i t-ir.ers) Rules, 2l) 17 &Dm rhe darc {,4 their impicmcnrabon.

34 -l'l-rc 
R,irrd ()f rhc c()mprnr hird ;rcc()rded conscnr r. rlrc Schemc .i \rn:rl{xmiru()n u'rrh [)l-[; I Ir rmc l)crckrpcrs I.imrred r.idc respectir-e resolutr()ns dared 27 -uirrch 2()25.'fhe

, (.handigarh Bench.schcmc is pr.p.sed tt, bc trled \\.trl.l rhc I [.n'blc \ari.,a] (.ompan' L,rrr

35 ln rhe.pi.rrrn,rirhe lJ,:rrd,Il)rrccr.rs crrrent;rssets, r()ins and:rdr rn rn thr ()rdin.Jn c()ursc t,Ibusincss:1t lcast cclLtal t() tlrc;rmount at \\-htch
tlrer'.rrc surrcd in thc R.rllnc. Shccr:rnd pnr'isi.ns ti,r.rll kn.s.n lilbili

36 IltJ \.-ll(r ''l.t,,rsgs" ts tilicrrr! [r(]t.rr lll.it+.rol(),'I hr c()rT,].1., h.rs 1lr,rf '

parrncnt-i :lt c\pctlsL on tlrr- blsts oi lc
rrh lc:rst icrrn rri lr.ss rh;rrr l) rlontl:s.'l l-.1 q-,,rrpanl is rcc,,gr.rrzir.rg ihc ler:c

rls( Pcrl(,d. \\'rfh tntrrductron oi I\I\.\S

c
-fh

am()un t and interhcprincipal dueres t ntherer-r t(Junpaldremalnlng
atas- endrhc io each

().94 0.66

Nftcro Small and Nledium F)nrerpnse De*elopmenr -\cr, 2()06 along u.rth
the am.unrs o[ rhe pavmenr made r, the suppr-ier bev.nd rhe ,ppiri.,red
das during each accounting rear

'am()unr of inrerest paid br. the buter in terms oi section 16, oi

pat'ment (s.hich hate becn paid but bevond rhe appoinred dai.

)ear) but Nirhour adding rhe inrercst spccified under trlicro
Iledium Enrerprise [)cr.elopment .\ct, 2006.

amount o[ intcresr duc and payable [or the period of delav in

during the

Small and

accoun

amount of interesf accrued and remaining unpard ar rhe end of each

interest remaining due and pavable e,,.r.r i., th.
such date rvhen the lnterest dues as ab<.rve arr

The amount of further
succeedlng years, until
actually pard ro rhe smail enrerprise ior rhe purpose r-rf disallo,*-ance as
deductible e\pendirure under sectlon 23 of rhe rIicr. small and \tediur
Enterprise Detelopment Act, 2()06

.'rrTl L:l5r' C( )lt

'c lr \'al uc ()ll

$t+ftfiTC,R,E D

h

as ir srll .n"'l rhc rcco.gniu.rr c\empri(,n pr.r.idcd in l)ara 6.i l\l) .\S l l6
llt) thcrc rvill hc no cl1a1g" ln tl'le .lccounrinu poltcr itrrd tjnancial._. of compitn.,.

Partforrlars As at Ae at
3l Malch fr25 : 3' zAU
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Notes to Financial Statements for the lear ended 3l March 20ZS

37 Figures .f prer i,us t'ears ha'e been regrouperl/reclassi,ed rvhere e'er c.nsidered neccssan' r. make them comparable rvith that .f current r;car

& Co

v,l For and on behzrlf oI l>o;rrd oI clircctors
Estate Developers

*

6E:',=
*

Place: Gurugram
Date:23.04.25

Manpreet Singh
f)irector

DI\ :08698797

Jeetendra Kumar patel

[)ircctor
DIN :0t3(r9ti827
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